
MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 12, 2017 PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

BOROUGH HALL, BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  F. Franco, S. Raymond, E. Alter, E. Lichtstein, M. Kates,  

Vice Chairwoman J. Miano, Chairman M. Giancarlo 

Councilman F. Pizzella 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Acting Mayor J. Ruocco, L. Calabria, G. Biener 

 

EMPLOYEES PRESENT:  N. Nabbie, Esq., Board Attorney 

    E. Leheny, P.P., Acting Board Planner 

        C. Statile, P.E., Board Engineer 

                                            M. Saeli, Acting Deputy Secretary 

    

Chairman Giancarlo called the meeting to order with a reading of the Open Public Meetings 

Statement at approximately 7:42pm. 

 

OPEN TO PUBLIC (for matters not on the Agenda): 

As no one wished to speak, the meeting was closed to the public. 

 

MINUTES: 

The September 28, 2017 Meeting Minutes were approved by the Board. 

 

Chairman Giancarlo took a moment to welcome Mr. Alter as a full member of the Board and Mr. 

Raymond as the new alternate. He then took recommendations for a new Board secretary. Mr. 

Alter put forward a motion to nominate Ms. Kates, seconded by Dr. Lichtstein. Ms. Kates 

abstained from voting. The board was polled and the motion was passed. Board Attorney Nabbie 

will prepare a resolution for the next meeting.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

PZ-12-17; Kevin O’Brien; Block 1004, Lot 6; 61 Park View Drive 

Application to appeal decision of an Administrative Officer 

 

At this time, Chairman Giancarlo recused himself from this hearing and Vice Chairwoman 

Miano led the hearing. Councilman Pizzella asked Board Attorney Nabbie if there is a conflict of 

interest because Mr. O’Brien came before the Borough Council about this matter. Ms. Nabbie 

replied she believes there is no conflict. Kevin O’Brien of 61B Park View Drive was sworn in. 

Mr. O’Brien raised a concern over a letter from a representative of Mr. Alter to Mr. O’Brien. Ms. 

Nabbie stated she believes there is no conflict and Mr. Alter can participate. Ms. Nabbie then 

raised concern about the notification of the meeting to the property owner, Mr. Wilson. Ms. 

Nabbie recommended written notice be given. The Board then discussed if written notice was 

required before moving forward. The Board decided that written notice should be given and the 

hearing is carried to October 26
th

 at 7:30pm. A brief recess was then called. 

 

 

 



PZ-10-17; Aeon Fitness & Gymnastics; Block 1212, Lot 13; 270 Knickerbocker Ave. 

Major Preliminary & Final Site Plan with Use Variance Application 

 

Counsel for Applicant- Robert Mancinelli, Esq. 

 

At 8:31pm, the meeting resumed. At this time, Councilman Pizzella recused himself from this 

hearing. Mr. Mancinelli called for the owners of Aeon Fitness, Ms. Amanda Lorenz and Ms. 

Stephanie Gaglioti. Ms. Lorenz and Ms. Gaglioti testified to the history of the space as well as an 

explanation of their programs. They then explained that they wanted to expand their current 

space to allow for the separation of competitive and recreational gymnastics teams. Ms. Lorenz 

and Ms. Gaglioti explained at peak times they have approximately 70 persons on the property 

and explained how drop-off, pick-up, and parking works on the property. Chairman Giancarlo 

then opened the meeting for questions from the Board.  

 

Mr. Franco asked if the buildings would be combined into one larger building. Misses Lorenz 

and Gaglioti explained the buildings would stay separate. Ms. Kates asked if there were plans to 

increase the number of birthday parties that would occur on the weekends. The owners explained 

that they intend for the amount and size of birthday parties to remain the same.  

 

Mr. Alter asked for clarification on the number of coaches and students that would be on the 

property at one time and if it would be across both buildings. Mr. Giancarlo asked how many 

people they expect on the property during peak operating times. Mr. Alter then asked how many 

parking spots were available to the gym as well as how many they expect to be added with the 

new property. Dr. Lichtstein asked how they will expand the space of the business without 

increasing the number of students or classes. Misses Lorenz and Gaglioti explained that they will 

charge more for competitive classes.  

 

Mr. Alter asked for clarification on how students will move between buildings. Mr. Raymond 

clarified how volume would increase with the increased space. Acting Planning Board Planner 

Leheny asked for clarification if greeters and coaches are the same. Misses Lorenz and Gaglioti 

replied that yes, coaches start as greeters before classes start. Chairman Giancarlo asked how 

many coaches are usually present during peak times. The women replied that between 7 and 10 

coaches are usually present. Chairman Giancarlo mentioned he would like to see the intensity of 

the site during peak times. Ms. Kates asked if there will be tenants in the building. Misses Lorenz 

and Gaglioti replied that there will not be tenants but there are other tenants on the site. Dr. 

Lichtstein then clarified the amount of spaces available on the entire site.  

 

Board Engineer Statile then explained the site to the Board members and his observations of the 

site during business hours. There was then discussion of the schedule of the business as well as 

the businesses surrounding the site. The Board then discussed possible issues with parking. Mr. 

Alter asked if Knickerbocker Avenue could support parked cars as well as trucks. Mr. Statile 

responded that it was possible. Ms. Nabbie asked if Mr. Lieber could be present at the next 

meeting to testify with an amended traffic report. She then clarified the hours of operation of the 

business.  

 



Chairman Giancarlo asked if hours would change with the expansion. Dr. Lichtstein asked if 

there is a security plan in place. Misses Lorenz and Gaglioti replied that the hours of operation 

would not change and they have security protocols in place. Mr. Statile raised concerns about the 

other tenants of the space. Chairman Giancarlo then opened the meeting to the public. As no one 

wished to speak, the meeting was closed to the public.  

 

Mr. Mancinelli than called his next witness, property owner Karen Skoglund of 94 Waldwick 

Avenue, Waldwick NJ. Ms. Skoglund was sworn in and explained the history of the property and 

its previous uses. She continued to discuss the current uses of the property and the current 

tenants. Dr. Lichtstein asked if a taxi company is allowed in an industrial zone. Mr. Statile 

responded that no it is not an industrial business. Ms. Nabbie asked how the business was 

approved. Ms. Skoglund explained what she believed to be the process that had taken place. Dr. 

Lichtstein then questioned Ms. Skoglund about the uses of the storage spaces. Mr. Alter asked if 

the other property tenants run into traffic for Aeon Fitness. Mr. Statile replied yes as there is only 

one entrance on the property. Mr. Alter then asked for more clarification of the contents of the 

storage spaces.  

 

Ms. Nabbie asked if Mr. Bruno could testify to the front building for the next meeting. Ms. Kates 

asked about the previous landscaping of the property. Mr. Statile stated that previous landscaping 

would have to be restored but that would be determined at a later time. Ms. Kates asked if 

storage was a permitted use of the property. Mr. Statile responded it is permissible as long as 

there are no flammables. 

 

 Dr. Lichtstein asked what would happen to non-permitted use with the granting of a new 

variance. Ms. Nabbie explained the possibilities and would like to discuss with Mr. Mancinelli 

and Ms. Skoglund. Ms. Nabbie also stated she would like copies of more documents and would 

like to understand how the tenants came into existence. Discussion then resumed on the storage 

units on the property. Board Engineer Statile asked who is responsible for the outside 

improvements. Mr. Mancinelli replied that it depends on the situation. The Board resumed 

discussion and clarification about parking on the property. Acting Board Planner Leheny advised 

that the Board should put in safeguards for future possible uses of the property. At this time 

Chairman Giancarlo opened the meeting to the public. As no one wished to speak, the meeting 

was closed to the public. The hearing has been carried to October 26
th

 at 7:30pm.  

 

At 10:15pm the Board entered closed session. At 10:39pm the Board entered open session. At 

this time Board Attorney Nabbie announced that the Board discussed affordable housing and no 

action was taken.  

 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:39pm.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Meghan Saeli 

Acting Deputy Secretary 


